
Regular meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Village of Brockport was held in the Conference 
Room, Municipal Building, 49 State Street, Brockport, New York, February 6, 2006 at 7:00pm. 
 
PRESENT: Mayor Morton Wexler, Trustee/Vice Mayor Carrie L. Maziarz, Trustee Maria C. Castańeda, 
Trustee David J. Wagenhauser, Trustee Mary Jo Nayman, DPW Superintendent Harry G. Donahue, 
Treasurer / Village Manager Ian M. Coyle, Clerk Leslie A. Morelli. 
 
EXCUSED:  Police Chief Daniel P. Varrenti, Building/Zoning Officer Scott C. Zarnstorff 
 
ALSO PRESENT:  Sgt. Douglas Ziegler, Deputy Village Attorney Frank A. Aloi (for executive session 
only), Building/Zoning Officer Scott C. Zarnstorff (for executive session only), Fire Chief Laurence C. 
Vaughan, John Lessord, Kathy Snyder, Jim & Joan Hamlin, Hanny Heyen, Norm GianCursio, Linda 
Borrayo, Don Murray, Doug Wolcott, Rudy Aceto, Robbi Hess (Suburban News), Allison Hadley 
(Brockport Post), Cora Gorlette (Lakeside Health System). 
    
CALL TO ORDER:  Mayor Wexler called the meeting to order and led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
REVIEW OF MEETING MINUTES:  Mayor Wexler called for any additions or corrections to the minutes 
of the regular meeting held January 17, 2006.   
 

 Trustee Wagenhauser moved, Trustee Castańeda seconded, unanimously carried that the minutes 
of the meeting held January 17, 2006, be approved as written. 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS:  None 
 
PUBLIC INFORMATION MEETINGS:  None 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: 
1.  Don Murray of 175 Erie Street said he was surprised to hear a lot of property owners do not follow    
      the zoning code, particularly the occupancy rule of no more than 3 unrelated.  He said a property     
       owner with a single-family home is allowed two unrelated people in the house, which can bring       
          income of $3,000 to $6,000 per year.  They are not being charged more in taxes for the tenants.  
He      said he would like to see the Village Board vigorously enforce the code.  He said he is neither 
pro or       anti landlord.  He simply believes that no one is above the law and all should follow the rules. 
 He           said as elected officials, even though some may be new, your obligation is to see that 
everyone              follows the rules.  If that means taking court action, then so be it.  No sweetheart 
deals should be            made.  He said these are his taxpayer dollars.  D. Murray said if elected officials 
do not enforce the        laws, then the citizens should petition the Attorney General to do it. 
 
     Mayor Wexler shared that there have been a couple of over-occupancy issues in recent months and 
     one landlord will be appearing in Town of Sweden Court this Friday at 10am.  Mayor Wexler shared 
      that it is important for people to come forward and let the Village know and that it is easier when 
they      are willing to sign an affidavit. 
 
     D. Murray said he is glad to hear it, because he feels that past history is that Village officials have     
      looked the other way.   He said a good citizen would be willing to assist in seeing justice done.  He  
       said dealing with the over-occupancy issue is important to the community.  D. Murray concluded 
that      college kids do not deserve to be packed into housing like sardines.   
 
GUESTS:   

1. Cora Gorlette – Lakeside Foundation – re: possible fundraising – C. Gorlette of the Lakeside 
Foundation said fundraising is getting more challenging and requires innovative ways to tap into 
charity dollars.  She said Lakeside Foundation is proposing to hold a “Bed Race” which it hopes 
will continue to be an annual fund raising event.  To ensure the most positive outcome and 
highest level of participation in the community, they are proposing the race be held on Main 
Street in the Village.  They will invite individuals and businesses in the community to participate 
in this unique event.  Teams will be encouraged to create and decorate a “bed” to enter in the 
judging contest and race to win great prizes.  There will also be a parade of beds, which will 
allow for a marketing opportunity for businesses sponsoring a bed.  The proposed date is 
Sunday, July 23, 2006 with registration at 9am, judging at 10am, parade at 11am and race at 
Noon.  The location for staging is still to be determined, but they are considering the municipal 
parking behind the Town of Sweden building.  The race would begin at Main Street and Erie 
Street to the Canal Bridge and back.  This event will bring participants and their friends and 
families to the Village.  They anticipate that prior to the race and during the activities participants 
will visit restaurants and stores located on Main Street bringing additional revenue to these 
businesses.  Lakeside will work with the Village and Transportation Department to coordinate 
any necessary permits required. 

 
C. Gorlette said a landscape business might want to enter a flowerbed.  A plumbing business 
might want to enter a bathtub on wheels.  Mayor Wexler asked if there would be beds from the 
hospital.  C. Gorlette said no, although they have saved some old beds in the basement that 



could be used. 
MINUTES OF MEETING HELD February 6, 2006 continued………………………………………page 2 

   
            C. Gorlette said these bed races are done in England and throughout Europe successfully.        
             Mayor Wexler said this would involve the Police Department, Fire Department and Brockport    
               Merchants Association.  Trustee Maziarz said this was discussed at the last BISCO meeting 
that             she and Trustee Nayman attended.  She said the town she is originally from has done it 
and                   the Board pushed their Mayor in a bed.  Mayor Wexler asked if the Canal Bridge would 
                           be up or down!  C. Gorlette said she realizes there are safety issues to be addressed 
and that                the biggest issue would likely be closing down that portion of Main Street.  Trustee 
Castańeda                asked if the merchants had been approached yet.  C. Gorlette said no, the starting 
point was the             Village Board.  Trustee Maziarz said the Farmer’s Market is held on Sundays and 
may be willing             to allocate some space to the event. 
 
            Mayor Wexler suggested a meeting with key players to discuss the details.  He commented that 
             not all merchants are open on Sundays.  C. Gorlette said they are not locked into that specific  
               date, if the Village has a better idea.  She thanked the Board and said she would be happy to 
                 further discuss the details. 
 
DEPARTMENT REPORTS: 
A. PUBLIC WORKS – Superintendent Harry G. Donahue  

1. Appointment to Meter Reader position – internal lateral transfer – Per Manager Coyle’s memo, 
with Dave Moore accepting the General Foreman/Director of Operations position, there exists a 
vacancy in the meter reader title, which Dave worked under.  Pursuant to the CSEA contract, 
the Village internally canvassed for applications and posted the vacancy notice at the DPW 
shop.  This is for all intents and purposes a lateral transfer for one of the crew members and 
will not be an addition to the employee rolls.  Jeff Woodin, currently a Laborer in the Sewer 
Department, is the only one who has applied.  Superintendent Donahue said Jeff is a 22-year 
DPW veteran and he recommends that the Board appoint him to the position.  He said it is a 
slight increase in pay over the laborers. 

 
Trustee Nayman asked the pay increase.  H. Donahue said it is $1.50 more per hour.  Trustee 
Wagenhauser asked if it is full time.  H. Donahue said yes.  Trustee Wagenhauser asked if that 
means this position spends 40 hours per week reading meters.  H. Donahue said no.  He does 
anything else the rest of the DPW laborers do as well. 

 
→ Trustee Nayman moved, Trustee Maziarz seconded, unanimously carried to appoint Jeff Woodin to 
the position of Meter Reader. 
 

2. Authorize Mayor to sign release of water line easement – Allied Group – H. Donahue shared 
that the Allied Group has requested a release of an old easement on a former water line.  
Village Attorney Calandra and he did a lot of research to determine that this line no longer 
exists.  They recommend the Board authorize the Mayor to sign the release of easement as 
follows: 

This is how the actual document read: 
 The Village of Brockport, a municipal corporation duly existing under the laws of the State of New 
York, with offices at 49 State Street, Brockport, New York 14420 (“Grantor”), in consideration of the 
sum of One Dollar ($1.00) and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt of which is hereby 
acknowledged, does hereby give, grant, release and quitclaim unto County of Monroe Industrial 
Development Agency, a public benefit corporation duly existing under the laws of the State of New 
York, with offices at 8100 City Place, 50 West Main Street, Rochester, New York 14614 and Brockport 
Industrial Center LLC, a New York limited liability company, with offices at 250 State Street, Brockport, 
New York 14420 (collectively, “Grantee”), their successors and assigns forever, all of its right, title and 
interest in and to the following described easement, it being the intention of the parties to terminate 
such easement: 
 
 Easement reserved in Deed from county of Monroe to Charles H. Beaney and Ruth T. Beaney, 
dated March 14, 1961 and recorded on April 7, 1961 in the Monroe County Clerk’s Office in Liber 3329 
of Deeds, page 94. 
 
→ Trustee Wagenhauser moved, Trustee Castańeda seconded, unanimously carried to authorize the 
Mayor to sign this release of easement. 
              
       3.  Washington Street – Mayor Wexler shared that previous Board had held a public hearing a        
             couple of years ago and approved the abandonment of Washington Street for use by the Allied 
              Group.  The legal process was never completed.  Therefore, Allied is to provide an appraisal 
to               Village Attorney Calandra to get this resolved.  This should be wrapped up soon.            
 
 
 
 



 
 
MINUTES OF MEETING HELD February 6, 2006 continued………………………………..…….page 3 
 
       4.  American Public Works Association – Monroe County Genesee Valley Branch - Mayor Wexler   
             shared that the Village of Brockport Department of Public Works along with the Village 
Engineer             and various contractors on the Harvester Park and Visitor’s Center project received 
the 2005                  Project of the Year Award for structural projects under $2 million dollars.  Managing 
Agency:                   Village of Brockport and DPW.  Design Consultants: Chatfield Engineers and NH 
Architecture,               PC, Contractors:  Crane-Hogan Structural Systems, Inc.;  Steve General 
Contractor, Inc; Testa               Construction, Inc.; O’Brien Mechanical Contractors, Inc.; Concord 
Electric Corporation. 
 
            Mayor Wexler said the award would be displayed at the front counter and then hung in the         
             Welcome Center when it re-opens May 1st.  He congratulated the DPW again. 
                                                                   
B.   POLICE DEPARTMENT – Sgt. Douglas Ziegler for Chief Daniel P. Varrenti 

1. Calls for Service – Sgt. Ziegler reported 1,390 calls for service year to date.  He said this is a 
little high. 
 

2. Recruits status – Sgt. Ziegler said as everyone knows both Justin Tierney and Lucas 
Vandervort successfully completed the 8-month Police Academy and he is happy to report they 
have also successfully completed 16 weeks of field training.  They are now on their own as part 
time Brockport police officers.  Sgt. Ziegler said he is glad the Board went back to selecting 
those for the academy because it gave them an opportunity to watch them for almost a year. 
 

3. Review of 4th Quarter Report – No questions. 
 

4. Accept resignation of Helen Skinner as Crossing Guard (was on sabbatical) – Sgt. Ziegler 
asked that the Board accept the resignation of Helen Skinner as Crossing Guard.  She has 
been on sabbatical this school year since moving to Spencerport. 
 

→ Trustee Castańeda moved, Trustee Nayman seconded, unanimously carried to accept the 
resignation of Helen Skinner as Crossing Guard. 
  

5. Request time in Executive Session – Sgt. Ziegler asked for a brief executive session at the end 
of the meeting. 

 
C. BUILDING / ZONING / CODE ENFORCEMENT - Scott C. Zarnstorff (excused) 
 
D.  FIRE /AMBULANCE / COMMUNICATIONS - Chief Laurence C. Vaughan  
       1.   Membership Adds/Drops/Transfers – Chief Vaughan asked the Board to consider approving 
the              following drops: Bradford Smith; the following adds: LeeAnne Blodgett to Ambulance only 
as a                mutual aid member, Jody Davis to Ambulance only, Scott Henry to Fire only; the 
following                       exempt certificates: Harold Vancassel; the following adds to Explorer Post:  
Chelsea Williams;                the follow drops from Explorer Post:  Colin Ryan, Chris Perkszyk. 
 
→   Trustee Maziarz moved, Trustee Castańeda seconded, unanimously carried approving the 
previously mentioned adds, drops, and exempt certificate. 
 
       2.  Call Load – Chief Vaughan reported 87 fire calls and 152 EMS calls year to date.  He said this 
is             on par with last year.  He said there was one fatal pedestrian struck by a motor vehicle on      
                 Monroe-Orleans County Line Road last Friday evening. 
 

3. Vehicles – Chief Vaughan reported that the new Chief’s vehicles were put in service February   
 4th.  The rest of the plan will be completed in the next few weeks which will include lettering      
  changes for the EMS Chief’s vehicle for appropriate markings, current duty officers vehicle      
   conversion to Village pool car and the oldest Crown Victoria Chief’s vehicle conversion to 
duty   officers vehicle. 
 

4. Consolidation – Chief Vaughan said they have received some valuable information from 
NYCOM concerning the consolidation of the companies into one department.  This eases the 
process considerably.  They have ironed out the last few situations with the by-laws and they 
are being reviewed by the committee prior to being distributed for approval by all parties 
involved.  They are very close and hope that the efforts that have been put forth these many 
years will all be rewarded with a new consolidated and more efficient Fire Department. 
 
Trustee Castańeda asked if the Fire Department would still report to the Village Board after 
consolidation.  Chief Vaughan said yes.   
 

5. Air Packs – Trustee Castańeda referred to the SCBA air packs approved for purchase from 



Morton at the last meeting.  She asked if they have to be hydro tested or certified and if there is 
a cost to this.  Chief Vaughan said they have to be hydro tested every 3-5 years at a cost of 
$25 to $30 per tank.  He said the purchase price from Morton was a bargain at $3,300. 
 

MINUTES OF MEETING HELD February 6, 2006 continued……………………….……………..page 4 
 
E.  TREASURER / VILLAGE MANAGER - Ian M. Coyle 

1. Code Review Committee – Manager Coyle reported that the current committee is wrapping up 
its recommendations on amendments to 7 chapters for Board consideration in March or April.  
He said S. Zarnstorff is working on recommendations to amending the sign chapter for Board 
consideration in April or May. 
 
The Village has vacancies on the Code Review Committee.  Position interest forms are due 
February 22nd. 
 

2. Canal Revitalization Committee – The Village has vacancies on the Canal Revitalization 
Committee.  Position interest forms are due February 22nd. 
 

3. Board of Ethics – Mayor Wexler said the Village still has vacancies on the Board of Ethics.  
Position interest forms are due February 22nd. 

 
F.   CLERK - Leslie A. Morelli 

1. Notice for Electing Officers – Clerk Morelli read the following: 
 
NOTICE FOR ELECTING VILLAGE OFFICERS 

 
PLEASE TAKE NOTICE the following resolution was adopted by the Board of Trustees of the Village of 
Brockport in their regular meeting held February 6, 2006. 
 
RESOLVED: that the Annual General Village Election in and for the Village of Brockport will be held 

on Tuesday, June, 20, 2006 with the following officers to be chosen: One (1) 
Trustee to complete a term of four years to June 30, 2008, and be it 

 
RESOLVED: that the first day to circulate independent nominating petitions is April 4, 2006, and the 

last day to file said petitions at Monroe County Board of Elections is Tuesday, 
May 16, 2006 at 5pm.  Petitions must indicate the office(s) and term thereto, for 
which it is filed, and be it further 

 
RESOLVED: that the applications for absentee ballots will be accepted by Monroe County Board of 

Elections no earlier than February 21, 2006 and no later than June 13, 2006 for 
applications to be mailed or June 19, 2006 for personal applications by applicant 
of his/her agent. 

 
→ Trustee Castańeda moved, Trustee Wagenhauser seconded, unanimously carried adopting the 
notice for electing Village officers. 
 
G.   ATTORNEY – Thomas D. Calandra / DEPUTY ATTORNEY – Frank A. Aloi  
 
H.   ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT –  

 
SUPPORT BOARDS REPORTS:  
A.   PLANNING BOARD – Chair R. Scott Winner (absent) 
  
B.   LIBRARY BOARD – President Matthew Minor (absent)   
 
C.   ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS - Chair John Bush (absent)  
 
VILLAGE BOARD REPORTS: 
A.   Trustee/Vice Mayor Maziarz  

1. Farm Market – Trustee Maziarz said planning has begun for the 3rd season of the Farmer’s      
 Market.  She asked that a committee of 5, including herself, be formed for planning purposes. 
  Mayor Wexler said Trustee Maziarz carried the ball with some help from former Economic      
   Development Coordinator Scott Winner over the last two summers.  It is time to share the      
    responsibilities instead of one person doing it all. 

 
→ Trustee Nayman moved, Trustee Wagenhauser seconded, unanimously carried to form a Farmer’s 
Market committee of 5 people to include Trustee Maziarz. 
 
              Clerk Morelli will solicit interest through an advertisement. 
 
         2.  Fire Department Swearing In – Trustee Maziarz thanked all for the invitation to tomorrow          



               evening’s swearing in ceremony and said she is looking forward to it.        
 
 
 
 
MINUTES OF MEETING HELD February 6, 2006 continued………………………………………page 5 
 
B.   Trustee Castańeda  

1. Village Advisory Committee – Trustee Castańeda reported that the organizational meeting held 
January 30th was productive and all were in attendance.  She shared that the next meetings will 
be at 7pm on Tuesday, March 7th, Tuesday, April 4th, and Tuesday, May 9th at the Village Hall.  
 Interest forms can still be submitted to Clerk Morelli.  Trustee Castańeda said she would 
review the January 30th meeting with the Board at their next workshop.  She said they are off to 
an        excellent start.  The committee will vote for a Chair, Vice Chair and Secretary at its next 
            meeting. 

 
Mayor Wexler said he stopped in to the meeting to thank everyone for his or her willingness to 
serve. He said it is a diverse group and there are sure to be differences of opinion.  However, 
that is the name of the game.  This is your Village.  Ideas, recommendations and concerns will 
be brought back to the Village Board for discussion and possible action. 

 
2. Board of Ethics – Trustee Castańeda encouraged more applications for the Board of Ethics. 

 
3. Cost Saving Ideas – Trustee Castańeda reminded the Board that Trustee Nayman mentioned 

various cost saving ideas at the last workshop.  She said she looks forward to discussing these 
further. 

 
C. Trustee Wagenhauser  

1. Water Rates – Trustee Wagenhauser said he recently suggested that the Board consider  
        either holding the line on water rates or reducing water rates a bit since the water fund has     
         improved.  Since then, Monroe County Water Authority announced a 5 percent increase.       
          Therefore, the Board discussed at the last workshop holding the line on water rates for now. 
           Although Village of Brockport water rates are still higher than neighboring municipalities,      
            progress is being made. 
 
        Mayor Wexler said the Board of Water Commissioners used to raise rates without Village       
         Board input or approval.  This was legal.  However, now that the Village Board disbanded the 
         BOWC, it has the authority to change rates.  Mayor Wexler said Manager Coyle and              
           Superintendent Donahue are keeping their eye on the water fund and will re-visit the subject 
of         rates again in June. 
 
2. Refuse Collection – Trustee Wagenhauser reminded all that a public hearing was held last  
        November to consider bidding out refuse collection.  Shortly after, the Town of Sweden began 
        looking at its recycle center / transfer station operation.  After a public hearing, the Town of     
         Sweden has decided to keep it open and charge a bit more.  Trustee Wagenhauser said the  
         62 days since the Village’s public hearing has passed.  He asked the Board to hold another   
          public hearing on the issue March 6th.  The change would be that people could opt out if they 
          wish.  This will help senior citizens and those who utilize the Sweden recycle center.  He 
said          he also hopes to ask for a senior discount in the bid. 

 
→ Trustee Wagenhauser moved, Trustee Maziarz seconded, unanimously carried to hold another 
public hearing regarding bidding out of refuse collection on Monday, March 6th. 
 
               Trustee Castańeda asked if the new proposal allows anyone to opt out if they wish.  Trustee   
                Wagenhauser said yes.  Mayor Wexler said he and Trustee Wagenhauser met with                
                 representatives of Waste Management and Suburban Disposal and their association after 
the                 last public hearing.  The haulers did not want to commit to any pricing until the Village 
Board                   determines what would be included in the contract.   
 
               John Lessord of Lyman Street spoke up and asked how the Board can expect people to          
                comment when they have not been given any information on pricing.  He further said he does 
                not want his rights taken away.  He wants to make his own decisions.  He asked how 5 
people                could make the decision for over 5,000.  Trustee Wagenhauser said that is what the 
Village                    Board does.  This is what we were elected for, to do the research and make 
decisions.  He                     said the Village Board has the authority to reject any and all bids.  J. 
Lessord asked how this                   proposal benefits him.  Trustee Wagenhauser said that was all 
reviewed at the November                       public hearing and will again be discussed at the next public 
hearing. 
 
               Trustee Nayman asked if she could make a motion to place this on the ballot of the June 20th  
                Village election.  She said she would like the taxpayers to have a vote or put it on the             



                  June ballot for referendum.  Trustee Maziarz said she thinks that is premature.  Trustee       
                    Wagenhauser recommended she hold that motion until after the next public hearing.  
Mayor                    Wexler said the Village Board makes decisions like this all the time and can’t always 
bring it to                the people for a vote.  People vote for their representatives and vote them out if they 
are not                   pleased.  
 
 
MINUTES OF MEETING HELD February 6, 2006 continued………………………………………page 6 
 
               Linda Borrayo of 155 Utica Street asked to speak.  Mayor Wexler reminded everyone that this 
                is not the public hearing and that they will have another opportunity on March 6th.  Clerk 
Morelli                said she would add to the legal notice that written comments will also be accepted.  
 

3. Police Chief’s Contract – Trustee Wagenhauser said with all due respect to all Village Board  
        members and not to inflame anyone, he has prepared a handout entitled “Economic Effects of 
        Revocation of Police Chief contract and non-renewal of (Sec. 211) Retirement Waiver –          
         Expenses/Outlook 2006”.  The content of that handout is as follows: 
 
          Original   New 
   Terms   Terms  Difference 
 
Salary  $97,960  $100,113 ($2,153) 
Clothing     1,000           250        750 
Retirement  0-9,796*      16,518* (6,722-16,518) 
  =98,960-108,756     116,881 (8,125-17,921) 
 
Other Potential / Likely Costs 2006: 
 
Vested portion of severance package:   ($37,000) 
Holiday Pay***      to (7,508) 
       = (44,508) 
 
Total Loss/Expenditures 2006:    ($8,125-64,429) 
 
It should be noted that there are other costs that may be forthcoming.  Obviously, legal fees 
continue to mount (to this point, approximately $10 – 12,000 in legal fees has been expended on 
this issue).  Should a settlement not be reached and the case goes to trial, legal fees could balloon 
to “6 figures”.  If the Village should lose all or a portion of any lawsuit, the financial repercussions 
could be enormous. 
 
* Per original agreement, severance provision provided for 5.2 weeks salary per year, due to 
Police Chief’s separation.  As point of reference, figure of $9,796 represents 5.2 weeks using 2006 
salary.  In actuality, 2006 costs would have been $0 if the original agreement had continued (total 
amount would have been paid in 2012).  It should be noted, that over the past four years, no funds 
have been set aside for this provision.  At time of revocation, $37,000+/- had vested and will be 
due the Police Chief.  This amount is represented in “Other Potential Costs 2006”. 
 
** As a result of the Board not signing the Section 211 Retirement Waiver, the Village will be 
responsible for paying 16.5% +/- of the Police Chief’s salary yearly for the remainder of his employ. 
 
*** Wording of “Holiday Pay” clause has changed from Original statement, tying it to Stetson Club 
clause that would allow the Police Chief to work holidays and receive pay for that holiday in 
addition to holiday pay.  Should he work all 13 holidays, he would presumably receive an additional 
$7,508. 
 
Trustee Wagenhauser said the Village would continue to pay an increased cost for the Police 
Chief position.  There is no pot of gold at the end of this rainbow.  He said he hopes the Village 
can settle and avoid court.  He said he feels these numbers are conservative.  He ran them past 
Manager Coyle today and Ian did not disagree.  Trustee Wagenhauser said this is simply a loser.  
It is costing, not saving the Village money.  He said he was compelled to present these numbers 
because he keeps reading in the local papers that this is a money saving issue. 
 
Trustee Maziarz said she ran the numbers on a simple excel spreadsheet.  This shows how much 
the Village will lose each year.  The only line item that saves money at all is clothing in which 
$5,000 is saved over 12 years.  She said her spreadsheet is available upon request. 
 

D.    Trustee Nayman – No report. 
 
E.     Mayor Wexler  

1. Monroe County Proposed Police Communications System Project – Mayor Wexler shared that 
he, Trustee Castańeda, Fire Chief Vaughan, Deputy Fire Chief Rombaut and DPW 



Superintendent attended the County’s public information open house meeting for the proposed 
police communications system project held January 31st.  An antenna installation is proposed 
behind the DPW at 38 East Avenue to improve radio communications.  What we have currently 
is inadequate.  There are areas in the Village where radios go dead.  Village Officials and 
Department Heads are in favor of this improvement.  Mayor Wexler said there would be an 
opportunity for those in the immediate area to learn more about it and provide input.  However, 
County officials have made it clear that this WILL happen since it is in the best interest of 
public safety. 
 

MINUTES OF MEETING HELD February 6, 2006 continued…………………………….………..page 7 
 

2. Tree Board – Mayor Wexler said he met with Margay Blackman of the Tree Board.  A project 
with SUNY Brockport for the upcoming April 28th Arbor Day is in the planning stages and will 
soon be announced. 
 

3. Walk Bike Brockport Action Group – Mayor Wexler said he met with representatives of the Arts 
and Aesthetics committee on a couple of their proposed projects including an Art Walk along 
the Erie Canal and Artist Jennifer Hecker’s work at Remembrance Park on Park Avenue. 
 

4. Police Chief’s Contract – Mayor Wexler responded to Trustee Wagenhauser and Trustee 
Maziarz’s handouts and comments regarding “the numbers”.  Regarding the “vested” portion of 
the severance package, the Village offered this in a possible settlement on December 16th.  
Several weeks have passed and there has been no response from Chief Varrenti.  One can 
only imagine that it was rejected.  Mayor Wexler said he was recently told that papers would 
be served.  The vested part may no longer be on the table.  It was presented as part of a 
package with the hopes of getting a settlement.  He said the previous Board, himself included, 
was told by Dan Varrenti in the hiring process that retirement and health benefits would not be 
part of the equation.  Things were done backwards.  He was hired without knowing hot much 
to pay him.  Mayor Wexler said the severance package really makes it an 11-year contract 
rather than a 10-year contract. 
 
Mayor Wexler said if the Village were to ask for help from the Stetson Club in trying to reduce 
the cost of the Police Department, maybe they should ask the person on top to take a cut.  
Mayor Wexler said anyone could throw numbers around.  He said he, Manager Coyle, Chief 
Varrenti and Chief Roche of Gates all sat at the negotiating table.  He said even T. Roche said, 
“this is a crapshoot – there is no case law.”  Mayor Wexler said he knows that a contract that 
extends beyond the elected officials terms is illegal.  He said to sign the retirement waiver 
would be lying.  He said he knows what the word perjury means.  He said the two Trustees to 
the right of him would not make that determination.   

 
      Trustee Castańeda read the 211 waiver statement that would have to be signed by Mayor        
       Wexler.  It read as follows:  “Certification By Appointing Authority I, the appointing authority,    
         hereby affirm under penalties of perjury as provided for in Section 210 of the Penal Law, that 
          the statements made herein (and on attached papers) are true and correct and that I have   
           determined that the retiree is duly qualified, competent and physically fit to perform the 
duties          assigned and that there are not readily available for recruitment non-retired persons 
qualified to       perform the duties of such position.” 

 
Trustee Castańeda read the following regarding employment of retired public employees: 
 
“.214 Approval for employment under Section 211 and appointment to a position are separate 
and distinct from each other.  While the Section 211 approval is valid for two years, the 
appointment is not necessarily guaranteed for two years.  If, for instance, the appointment 
were not permanent and a mandatory eligible list comes into existence for the position before 
the end of the two year period, the employee would be replaced by an individual appointed 
from the eligible list even though he or she had Section 211 approval.  Conversely, someone 
with Section 211 approval could receive a permanent list appointment, and while the 
appointment would likely exist for more than two years, the Section 211 approval could not.  
Once the two years have expired, that person would then have the following options: 
 

A. resign and continue to collect full retirement benefits; 
B. remain in the position with his/her retirement benefits affected; or,  
C. apply through the agency for a new Section 211 approval. 

         
               New York argues that its approach to pension benefits for re-employed retirees furthers its      
                legitimate interest in saving money by barring pension practices that have the character of     
                  “double-dipping.”  The default policy of preventing receipt of a public pension while also        
                   receiving a public salary reflects the notion that such simultaneous income streams “could  
                     constitute an abuse of the public fisc.”  Baker, 501 N.E.2d at 1193.  The exception to this 
rule                  carved out by section 211 simply gives employees a choice between two different ways 
of                       limiting their drain on public funds:  deferring pension benefits from their first job or 



forgoing                     pension benefits from their second job.  See Brown, 485 N.Y.S.2d at 874 
(characterizing                         section 211 waiver system as preventing “double dipping” in two pension 
systems).  Whether                  sound policy or not, there is nothing irrational about the state deciding 
that at any one time a                   public employee should not both be accruing a new public pension 
and receiving an old public                pension.  Under the default rule he accrues but does not receive, 
and under section 211 he                    receives but does not accrue.” 
 
               Trustee Wagenhauser said the $37,000 IS vested according to the Attorney General’s 
opinion.                Regarding the waiver, this is not a lateral transfer.  Trustee Wagenhauser said even 
Village                    Attorney Calandra does not see a problem with signing the waiver.  Trustee 
Wagenhauser        
MINUTES OF MEETING HELD February 6, 2006 continued………………………..…………….page 8 
 
               said it is being used as a bargaining chip.   
 
               Mayor Wexler said Trustee Wagenhauser asked if he could distribute his information.              
                However, it should have been done in executive session.  Trustee Wagenhauser tried to        
                 interject.  Mayor Wexler said he is talking.  Mayor Wexler said he heard things last 
Wednesday                regarding this waiver that should not have been said.  Trustee Wagenhauser said 
he does not                know what he is referring to.  Mayor Wexler said it appears election season has 
begun.             
 
               Trustee Wagenhauser said it has nothing to do with it and he is not running.  However,            
                he said the Village is paying more for its Police Chief now than before the contract was          
                  dissolved.  Trustee Wagenhauser said he is not trying to rile anyone, he is simply making 
the                  public aware of the numbers and that they are losing money.   
 
               Kathy Snyder of Lyman Street spoke up and suggested the Board move on.  She said             
                Josephine Matela might as well be sitting up there.  She said it is immature and ridiculous 
and                that everyone knows it gets like this in a Village election year.  She left. 
 

5. Appointments to Seymour Library Board of Trustees – Mayor Wexler said they have reviewed 
all applications and the Acting Library Director made her recommendation. 

 
→ Trustee Castańeda moved, Trustee Nayman seconded, unanimously carried to appoint Jeff 
Davignon to the Seymour Library Board of Trustees to complete the term to June 30, 2006 and Lynne 
Gardner to the Seymour Library Board of Trustees to complete the term to June 30, 2010. 
 

6. Appointments to Village Advisory Committee – Mayor Wexler said the Village received an 
application for the Village Advisory Committee from Hanny Heyen who attended the recent 
organizational meeting. 

 
→Trustee Castańeda moved, Trustee Nayman seconded, unanimously carried to appoint Hanny 
Heyen to the Village Advisory Committee. 
 

7. Street light proposed between #167 & #173 Main Street – pole # NM 10 155 RTC 9 – Mayor 
Wexler reviewed a memo from Fire Chief Vaughan recommending a street light on an existing 
pole between 167 and 173 Main Street.  Chief Vaughan said this was on his original list a 
couple of months ago, but he did not transfer it to the final list that was presented to the Board. 
Mayor Wexler said in the past Chief Varrenti has always been in favor of more lighting. 

 
→ Trustee Nayman moved, Trustee Maziarz seconded, unanimously carried to approve the street light 
as proposed. 
 

8. South Avenue – Village owned parcel – Resolution to declare property surplus – Mayor Wexler 
said the Board reviewed both Jim Gaze’s appraisal and Danielle Windus-Cook’s appraisal / 
market analysis for the Village-owned parcel of land on South Avenue.  It shows the area could 
be split into two saleable lots – thereby maximizing the revenue the Village would receive if 
sold.  Mayor Wexler said one lot was appraised at $30,000 and the other lot was appraised at 
$35,000.  At this point the Village needs to declare the property surplus. 
 

→ Trustee Castańeda moved, Trustee Nayman seconded, unanimously carried to adopt the following 
resolution: 
 
WHEREAS, the Village of Brockport owns property located at 52 South Avenue; and 
 
WHEREAS, the aforementioned property is no longer needed for municipal purposes; 
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Trustees of the Village of Brockport hereby declare 
the Village-owned property located at 52 South Avenue as surplus property. 
 



9. Executive Session – pending litigation – at the end of the meeting. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: 

1. Doug Wolcott of Erie Street said he heard of a possible hospice being built on the vacant South 
Avenue parcel.  Mayor Wexler said someone had brought up that possibility, but it has not gone 
any further.  Manager Coyle said the recommendation is to subdivide the parcel into 2 lots.  
Then the Village Board needs to set parameters that fit within the zoning district and such.  
Mayor Wexler said they would welcome the opportunity to consider any reasonable ideas at any 
time. 
 

2. Linda Borrayo of 155 Utica Street said that when the Village was considering establishing the 
Farmer’s Market they sent out a survey to get people’s feedback.  She said she thinks the 
garbage collection issue is a bigger issue and that everyone should be given his or her say.  
She 

MINUTES OF MEETING HELD February 6, 2006 continued…………………………..…………..page 9 
 
           said 12 people spoke at the November public hearing on the garbage proposal and 11 of the 12 
            were against it.   
 
           Trustee Maziarz responded that the survey regarding the Farmer’s Market was done by herself   
            and the Village’s former Economic Development Coordinator was not mailed and was done       
             through Brockport Central School District at no cost to the Village to canvas the greater 
Brockport            area.  She said maybe something could be placed in the next Village newsletter or on 
the Village            website. 
 

Regarding the Police Chief’s contract, L. Borrayo said it was important for this Board first and 
foremost correct something that was illegal (the contract length).  She said she would imagine 
that a man of the law such as Chief Varrenti would not want to disobey the law.  L. Borrayo said 
she goes to almost all meetings and workshops and believes that the Board should fully discuss 
this issue at Board workshops or in executive session.  She said maybe the Board is not using 
the workshops effectively.  She said she does not see her tax money being taken care of, 
because some Trustees seem to be working for Chief Varrenti instead of the taxpayers. 
 
Trustee Maziarz responded that this is a matter of numbers – very conservative at that.  She 
said she is looking out for the taxpayer’s interests.  Trustee Maziarz said Manager Coyle briefly 
reviewed these numbers today and did not find any glaring discrepancies.  Trustee 
Wagenhauser said he would hope that each Trustee would have done this homework on their 
own.  Trustee Wagenhauser said the Village is paying more for the Police Chief’s contract now 
than it did before. 

 
       3.  Joan Hamlin of 50 Park Avenue said she is so very disappointed.  This is public comment, and  
             Village Board members should not attack the public.  Regarding the next public hearing on the 
               refuse collection issue, she suggested it be held at a larger venue.  Regarding the Police 
Chief’s             contract, she said she has supported the Police Department and Police Chief Varrenti 
fully.  She             said she has only encountered two legal issues in her life and that was the adoption 
of                             grandchildren.  J. Hamlin said this whole contract issue is a feeding frenzy.  The 
Village Board is             not even trying to cooperate with each other and some are morally corrupt.  
She said she                        blames the previous administration for giving Chief Varrenti the contract, 
but does not blame him             for getting it.  However, the contract was signed and the retirement 
waiver re-signed by the then-             Mayor without a vote of the Board.  The contract was signed in 
January 2002, but not brought to             the Village Board until April 2002.  Subsequent waivers were 
never brought to the Board. 
 
           J. Hamlin also recommended that the video camera be moved up so that people who don’t come 
           to the meetings can clearly see the expressions made and body language of some of the            
            Trustees during their meetings.  She said it is immature and childish.  She said the people voted 
            for a Board of mature citizens that would look out for the taxpayers good.  The Board should be 
             able to discuss and disagree civilly and not hash things out in the newspapers. 
 
       4.  Norm Giancursio of College Street said he has respect for the Police Department and the Police 
            Chief.  He said if they could get away with their contracts, why not.  However, the City of            
              Rochester Police Chief makes $116,000 and has a much larger department and territory to      
               cover.  He said the last Mayor gave away the store. 
 
            Mayor Wexler said in all fairness, the previous Board approved the contract.  Joan Hamlin said  
             not before it was signed.  Mayor Wexler said the Board was aware of it. 
 
Executive Session 
⇒ At 8:55pm Trustee Castańeda moved, Trustee Nayman seconded, unanimously carried that the 
Board of Trustees of the Village of Brockport enter into an executive session to discuss personnel and 
legal matters. 



 
I, Leslie A. Morelli, Clerk for the Board of Trustees of the Village of Brockport, do hereby certify that the 
Board met in an executive session and did discuss the matters as expressed in their motion, and I 
further certify that no formal action regarding public funds was taken thereon. 
 

_________________________________ 
Leslie Ann Morelli, Village Clerk 

 
Police Department Containment Rifles – 
In executive session the Board reviewed Sgt. Ziegler’s proposal that was endorsed by Chief Varrenti for 
the purchase, via a grant, of containment rifles for each marked police vehicle. 
 
→ Trustee Maziarz moved, Trustee Castańeda seconded, unanimously carried approving the 
purchase, via a grant, of containment rifles for each marked police vehicle.  
 
 
MINUTES OF MEETING HELD February 6, 2006 continued…………………………………….page 10 
 
AUDIT: 

 Trustee Maziarz moved, Trustee Castańeda seconded, unanimously carried that the bills be 
allowed and paid upon audit. 

 
Village 
Date Check #   Amount 
1/19/06 172792  2,300.00 
1/25/06 172798-172804 1,982.89 
2/6/06 172845-172879 21,117.77 
2/6/06 172880-172915 18,611.18 

 
Fire 

       1/24/06 172794  102.50 
       1/25/06 172795-172797 868.74 
 2/6/06 172806-172844 57,378.14 
 

Third Party Billing  
1/25/06 703   202.09 
2/6/06 704-714  8,376.54 

 
Capital Projects 
2/6/06 1973-1976  26,332.54 

 
Sewer 
2/6/06 1072-1073  145.33 

 
Water  

        1/25/06  1322-1324  324.46 
        2/6/06  1326-1335  15,403,51 
               
ADJOURNMENT: 

 Trustee Wagenhauser moved, Trustee Nayman seconded, unanimously carried that the meeting 
be adjourned at 10:17pm. 

 
__________________________ 
Leslie Ann Morelli, Village Clerk 

 


